1 it we

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SID J. WHITE

7/7

JUN 11 1997

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By
Chief Deputy Clerk

THE FLORIDA BAR

Re: PATRICIA ANN ASH

Case No, 90,527

ON APPEAL FROM THE FLOFUDA BAR BOARD OF GOVERNORS

INITIAL BRIEF OF PATRICIA ANN ASH

PATRICIA ANN ASH FLA. BAR NO. 0365629 145 MONTEREY POINTE DRIVE PALM BEACH GARDENS, FLA. 33418 (561) 688-7759

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Patricia **Ann** Ash ,Appellant, will be referred to herein as "Ash." Appellee, The Florida **Bar**, will be referred to herein **as** "BLSE". Reference to the record on appeal shall be by exhibits attached hereto.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This Court approved the area of Appellate Law Certification on July 1, 1993 (Exhibit 1). Ash requested an application pursuant to the encouragement of her employer, the Attorney General of Florida, by his offer of a yearly salary increase for certification. Ash has practiced appellate law full-time as an assistant attorney general since April 17, 1989, and prior to that, as part of a general practice since 1983. The Attorney General's Office is a high-volume appellate practice. Ash carries a heavy case load and is very good at independently managing that caseload. Ash has placed argument before The Third District Court of Appeal, The Second District Court of Appeal, The Fourth District Court of Appeal, The Florida Supreme Court, The United States District Court for the Southern District, The Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeal, and The United States Supreme Court. Her argument on appeal to this Court in State v. Schopp, 653 So.2d 1016 (Fla. 1995), successfully persuaded this Court that the harmless error analysis applies where a court fails to conduct an adequate Richardson inquiry, receding from twenty- four years of holding perse fundamental error.

Ash completed the application and submitted it after the deadline with permission of Kristen Darby of the certification department (Exhibit 2). It was received on December 8,1993 (Exhibit 3). The application instruction stated that the accuracy of the application would be verified and the Board or Committee may contact an applicant to obtain additional information pertaining to the applicant's qualifications (Exhibit 4, #7, #8). Further, the instructions stated that identity of applicants and contents of forms would be treated with confidentiality by the Board, the Committee and staff (Exhibit 4,#10; Exhibit 5, standard 6-3.11). Pursuant to Ash's application the following occurred:

- 1. On February 4, 1994, a letter was written by Kristen Darby on behalf of the Appellate Law Certification Committee, stating that the application was still under review but Ash could request permission to sit for the examination (Exhibit 6).
- 2. On February 11, 1994, Chairman Arthur England, sent a letter stating that Ash would be scheduled to sit for the March 9, 1994 exam. No review course would be provided (Exhibit 7). Ash submitted her exam agreement on February 16,1994 (Exhibit 8).
- 3. On May 18, 1994, Kristen Darby sent notification that although **Ash's application had been approved by the Committee,** she had failed to achieve a passing grade on the exam. The next procedure available to Ash was a review of the exam (Exhibit 9). Ms. Darby sent Ash instructions for review on May 24, 1994 (Exhibit 10; 11).
- 4. Pursuant to notification of application approval, Ash reviewed her exam and applied to retake the exam (Exhibit 12). The application was received on August 31, 1994 (Exhibit 13).
- 5. On January 19, 1995, Ms. Darby notified Ash that after **final** review of **Ash's** application for certification **the Committee recommended that the application be denied.** The Board of Legal Specialization had affirmed the Committee's finding in accordance with Rule 6-3.5(c)(6) of the Florida Certification Plan, **peer review** (Exhibit 14).
 - 6. On January **25**, 1995, Ash filed a notice of challenge of **the** disqualification (Exhibit 15).
- 7. On February 2, 1995, Ms. Darby acknowledged receipt of the notice of challenge and gave Ash the option of taking the examination on March 8, 1995, as an "unapproved" applicant (Exhibit 16). The exam agreement was executed on February 8, 1995, and Ash again sat for the exam on March 8, 1995 (Exhibit 16a; 17).

- 8. After seeing the publication of the list of the passing applicants in The Record and The Florida **Bar** News (Exhibit 18), and receiving no notification from the Committee, Ash retained Michael Ullman, **Esq.**, to represent her interests. Mr. Ullman communicated Ash's concerns with the certification process to the Committee on July 13, 1995. Ullman requested a time frame for the Committee's decision with regard to Ash's application (Exhibit 19).
- **9.** On August 1,1995,Ms. Darby responded that Ash's application was under review and that Ash had **passed** the 1995 appellate certification examination (Exhibit **20**). The published list stating that **27** of the applicants had passed was not accurate (Exhibit 18).
- 10, Mr. Ullman again expressed Ash's concerns to the Committee on August 22, 1995 (Exhibit 21).
- 11. On January **12,** 1996, five and a half months after the request for a time frame, the Chairman of the Appellate Certification Committee, John Beranek, through his personal office, rather than through The Florida **Bar**, communicated to Mr. Ullman that the Appellate Certification Committee **denied** of Ash's application. The Committee had concluded that **Ash** lacked appellate competence and expertise to warrant certification. Further, the Committee had concluded that Ash did not disclose all cases in which **her** competence or conduct was adversely commented upon in writing by a judge, calling attention to questions F-4 and **F-5** of the original application filed in December 1993. Johnson v. <u>Singletary</u>, Case No. 93-00334 in the Third District Court of Appeal was relied upon by the Committee (Exhibit **22)**.
- 12. On January 23, 1996, Ash timely filed notice of challenge of disqualification with the area committee pursuant to Legal Specialization and Education Programs Policy 2.09(c)(1) (Exhibit 23).

- 13. On April 22, 1996, Jenny Lawton, Administrative Secretary Legal Specialization and Education, responded by letter to Ash's challenge stating that a letter had been mailed to her at her home address on March 21,1996. The March 21 letter was undeliverable and was forwarded to Ash at her office and received on April 29, 1996 (Exhibit 24). All previous correspondence had been sent to Ash either at the Attorney General's Office, by regular mail, or to Ash's counsel, Mr. Ullman.
- 14. The letter of March 21, 1996, (Exhibit 24), from the Board of Legal Specialization, Dawna G. Bicknell, Director, stated that Ash's notice of challenge under Policy 2.09 was procedurally incorrect, in that the alleged failure to disclose was not considered peer review, even though peer review had originally been the reason for denial (see paragraph 5, supra). However, Ash's position was that if her application had been denied for failure to disclose all cases in which her competence had been commented on adversely in writing by a judge (Exhibit 25), then a peer would have had to determine that the omission warranted denial and that determination would therefore be "peer review".
- 15. On June 7, 1996, Ash filed a petition for review of the denial to the Certification Plan Appeals Committee (Exhibit 33). The BSLE filed a response on July 30, 1996 (Exhibit 34). Ash filed a reply on August 16,1996 (Exhibit 35). The Certification Plan Appeals Committee summarily affirmed that denial by the BSLE on October 10, 1996 (Exhibit 36).
- 16. Ash filed notice of appeal with this Court on October 25, 1996. The BSLE, thereafter on November 6, 1996, informed Ash that Policy 4.1 1 was in error and that she must appeal first to the Board of Governors of the Florida Bar (Exhibit 37). The Board of Governor's summarily affirmed the decision of the Certification Plan Appeals Committee on April 3, 1996 (Exhibit 38). Notice of Administrative Appeal was again filed with this Court.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

POINT I

The Florida **Bar** erred in denying **Ash** appellate certification. The denial is based on no competent evidence. The rules promulgated for the procedures of certification have not been followed. The denial is arbitrary, capricious and unwarranted.

POINT II

The BSLE's denial of certification is beyond its statutorily delegated powers and is unreasonable and discriminating. There is a **lack** of factual basis and no argument supported by authority upon which the denial of certification was based the confidentially required by statute

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FLORIDA BAR ERRED IN DENYING ASH APPELLATE CERTIFICATION

The Appellate Certification Committee based its denial on a bare conclusion that Ash lacked sufficient appellate competence and expertise to warrant certification without supporting facts. No explanation as to the basis for that decision is offered, This is an arbitrary and capricious decision and can be refuted by **Ash's** record. (Exhibit 31). Breesmen v. **Dept. Prof.** Regulation, **567** So.2d 469 (Fla. 1st **DCA** 1990)(statute which authorizes revocation or suspension of professional license is penal in nature and must be strictly construed in favor of the licensee and there must be adequate notice to the licensee of standard of conduct to which he or she must adhere); The Florida Bar v. Pearce, 631 So.2d 1092 (Fla. 1994)(findings of fact must be supported in the record); The Florida **Bar** v. Wasserman, **654** So.2d 905 (Fla. 1995)(record must support findings).

A. Alleged Failure To Disclose

N. +3 @ "

The denial further states that Ash did not disclose all cases in which her competence or conduct was adversely commented on by a judge in writing, calling attention to the following questions ,F-4 and F-5.

- 4. List and explain all cases in which your competence or conduct was raised as a **basis for relief** requested by the court including but not limited to a **new trial**, **new appeal**, **dismissal or reversal**.
- 5. List and explain all cases in which your conduct was adversely commented upon in writing by a judge or **determined to be error** whether harmless or not.

However, the case of <u>Johnson v. Singletary</u> was disclosed on page 7, #2 of the original application as a most recent case and Ash submitted the petition and response with her application pursuant to the instructions (Exhibit 2). Ash's failure to list the case pursuant to questions **F-4** and **F-5** was because at the time that she made the application, she did not consider that the questions pertained to the court's order of May 17, **1993** (Exhibit 26).. Question **F-4** states "raised as a basis for relief and question **F-5** "determined to be error." Ash took those as the operative words, Ash did not feel that the order to show cause was raised **as** a basis for relief and the cause was not determined to be error **as** the court accepted her explanation (Exhibit 27). **Ash's** response to the order to show cause and subsequent Response to Petition For Writ Of Habeas Corpus was accepted by the court (Exhibit 28, 29,32). Therefore, Ash's failure to submit this order to show cause pursuant to questions **F-4** and **F-5** was not to deceive the Committee about her history. <u>Breesmen</u>, **567** So.2d at 471(there must be adequate notice of standard of conduct to be followed); <u>Florida Bd. of Bar Examiners Re J.A.S.</u>, 658 So.2d **5**15 (Fla. 1995)(admission approved based on rehabilitation).

B. Appellate Competence and Expertise

An attorney is first an officer of the court, bound to serve the ends of justice with openness, candor and fairness to all. Ash would also point out that Rule 9.410, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, provides after ten days notice, the court may impose sanctions for any violation of the rules or for the filing of any proceeding which is frivolous or in bad faith. Ash responded to the court's order to show cause and explained the omissions in her pleading. Ash did not mislead the court in material matters. Ash fulfilled her duty to make full disclosure mandated by Rule 4-3.3(a) and Rule 4-3.3(d), Rules Regulating The Florida Bar. The show cause order was notice and Ash fully complied. Ash's compliance should not be construed as lacking competence and expertise to warrant certification. Compare Hays v. Johnsog, 566 So.2d 260 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990)(pursuant to

an order to show cause, an attorney who omits material facts **after notice** in a habeas petition will be admonished). The court did not impose sanctions pursuant to Rule 9.410, finding no bad faith or frivolousness. <u>Johnson v. Singletary</u>, 625 So.2d 1251 (Fla. 3rd **DCA** 1993)(Exhibit 32).

The Committee first stated that denial was based on peer review. They later determined that the denial was based upon Ash's alleged failure to disclose. The Committee **allowed** Ash to sit for the first exam and communicated to her on May 18, 1994 that the application had been approved. Ash re-applied to take to take the **exam** in 1995, in **reliance upon the approval**, and spent many hours preparing for the **exam**. Shortly before the exam, Ash was notified of denial. The Committee first stated that denial was based on peer review (Exhibit 14). Regardless, Ash sat for the exam a second time, awaiting reconsideration. Almost one year to the day of taking the second exam, based on the original application, not the subsequent re-application that did not contain questions F-4 and F-5, the Committee gave Ash notice of denial, after approval and reliance thereon, on April 29, 1996. The committee determined that the denial was based on Ash's alleged failure to disclose (Exhibit 25). The Committee charged lack of candor and gave Ash no opportunity to respond. At no time did the Committee offer Ash the opportunity to explain her alleged omission. The Committee gave no consideration to other mitigating factors that have occurred both before and after her application in December of 1993. See In re V.M.F., 491 So.2d 1104, 1107 (Fla. 1986)(granting admission to applicant who was not completely candid in Bar application about a drug arrest where applicant had no other transgressions and had led an exemplary life in the intervening years).

This denial is **very** serious punishment. There has been no showing **of** intent, let alone a showing of **a** pattern of intentional misconduct or deception that would warrant such serious punishment. Ash did not willfully or otherwise deceive the Committee with her application. Ash

had no intent to mislead the Committee. What reasonable person would persevere to achieve certification knowing that they had falsified an application that was being scrutinized by the Committee? Furthermore, Ash provided the Committee with Johnson, the petition and the response, pursuant to another question on the original application. Without proof of intent with clear and convincing evidence, Ash should not be denied certification. The Flon'da Bar v. Neu, 597 So.2d 266 (Fla. 1992); The Florida Bar v. Cramer, 643 So. 2d 1069 (Fla.1994)(to find that an attorney has acted with dishonesty, misrepresentation, deceit, or fraud, the necessary element of intent must be proven by clear and convincing evidence).

There is no showing of recent, material conduct that impinges on Ash's ability to practice appellate law. This is not a question of Ash's inability to tell the truth. The alleged "misconduct" at issue took place almost four years ago, when Ash first submitted her application. There is nothing else that would evidence unfitness for certification. The discrepancy in the application does not support the Committee's conclusion that Ash is not qualified for certification. The omission in Johnson v. Singletary was an isolated incident. This was corrected to the court's satisfaction. Ash's answer to questions F-4 and F-5 was not an attempt to deceive but a failure to recognize that interpretation would be applied (Exhibit 2 p.7). Ash's responses were not "none" but rather " not applicable" (Exhibit 2 p.7). Florida Bd. of Bar Examiners Re: J.A.S., 658 So.2d 515 (Fla. 1995)(minor testimonial discrepancy does not evidence lack of honesty, truthfulness and candor); The Florida Bar v. Cox, 655 So. 2d 1122 (Fla.1995)(serious punishment is only warranted if the facts reflect a pattern of intentional misconduct and deception).

Ash is very involved in the legal community and works hard to maintain her professional standards (Exhibit 31). **Ash** is a hard working, competent, honest person and officer of the court. Ash had over 200 published opinions (far more p.c.a.'s) where her competence has never been

challenged. Ash often defends the State against very frivolous appeals filed by <u>pro se</u> defendants, private defense attorneys and public defenders. The appellate court merely affirms the trial court with no comment on the merits of the issues raised by the defense but often the court will question the State for doing its job in defense of the public. The court does not always agree with a position taken or an argument made and usually only one side wins the argument. The order to show cause is something that should not reflect on Ash's appellate competence and expertise. Ash made an omission in filing her original response which was corrected. In consideration of all of the facts, the denial of certification is not appropriate. Several people that have been approved for certification have far less appellate experience than **Ash.**'

The Committee has not followed its own rules. The Committee changed its decisions. First it approved and then denied the application. The application was denied first on the obsensible basis of peer review, then on alleged failure to disclose a case that was included on the application. Ash has incurred expense in filing applications twice, traveling and sitting for exams twice. Ash studied for the second exam with reliance on the approval and was notified shortly before the 1995 exam of the reversal of the approval, causing the stress **of** taking the exam without approval. Ash has expended attorney fees for Mr. Ullman, telephone calls and correspondence to the Florida **Bar**, the preparation and the fee for the filing of the appeals to the BSLE and Certification Plan Appeals Committee, and now this appeal.

Mr. Richard Polin, the Bureau Chief **and** Ash's supervisor at the time the response was filed, wrote the Committee on **Ash's** behalf, prior to the final decision. The Committee gave no

¹ No person who sits on the Committee has met the requirements that the applicants must fulfill.

consideration to mitigating factors or explanation (Exhibit 30). Ash has never intentionally misrepresented herself or "lied" about anything. The Committee has abused its discretion in denying Ash certification based on the non-disclosure they allege but they do not allow Ash to defend or explain. This denial is arbitrary, capricious and unwarranted. It should be reversed.

POINT II

BSLE'S DENIAL OF CERTIFICATION IS BEYOND ITS STATUTORILY DELEGATED POWERS

Pursuant to administration of the certification plan, the **BSLE** shall have the authority to promulgate rules and policies to accomplish the responsibilities assigned to it **as described** by establishing **reasonable** and nondiscriminating policies. Policy 1.01(2). The BSLE bears the ultimate responsibility in the certification of applicants. Its involvement, however, **should be no more extensive** than necessary to ensure minimum standards of the plan are met and there is **uniformity** among the committees. Policy 2.01(a). The **BSLE** did **not** ensure uniformity **among the** committees **as** required. It should be noted that Ash's initial application was approved by the committed which was chaired by **Arthur** England, Esq. The supplemental application, submitted for the purpose of retaking the examination after notice of approval, **was** denied by another committee chaired by John Beranek (who corresponded through his private office rather than through The Florida **Bar office**, as is required for confidentiality by the statute (Rule 6-3.11). Thus, neither did the BSLE insure confidentiality.

Furthermore, after the Appellate Committee notified Ash on January 19,1995, that her application was denied after **final** review, affirmed by the Board of Legal Specialization, in accordance with Rule 6-3.5(c)(6), **peer review**. Pursuant to the process for peer review disqualification, Ash filed a notice of challenge (Exhibit 6) (Policy 2.09(B)). If the applicant continues to challenge the disqualification, the BLSE chair **shall** appoint a peer review panel (PRP) consisting of 1 member of the BSLE, 1 member of the area committee **and** 1 ad hoc appointee. Policy 2.09(d). Upon completion of such investigation, the applicant **shall** be notified of the nature and substance of the adverse peer review responses and **given** the opportunity to present the applicant's position or explanation. Policy 2.09(d)(1)(2). This requirement was not followed. The Chairman, Mr. Beranek's letter of January 12, 1996, did not indicate that any such panel was

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