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

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There was no error, or denial of due process or right of review, in the denial of appellant's application for appellate law certification. Questions III. F. 4. and 5. On the initial application filed by appellant clearly and unmistakably required disclosure and attachment of a show cause order directed to appellant on May 17, 1993, by the District Court of Appeal, Third District of Florida. Instead of making the required disclosure, appellant falsely answered "N/A," or "not applicable," to each question.

The undisclosed order of May 17, 1993, was highly critical of appellant's misuse or misrepresentation of pertinent authority in proceedings involving a pro se adversary. The order not only directed appellant to show cause why further sanctions should not be imposed, but also struck the prior response she had submitted on behalf of the State of Florida <u>and</u> required that further filings by appellant in that proceeding also be signed by a supervising attorney. Appellant's Exhibit 26. This order was issued only seven months before appellant submitted her initial December, 1993, application for certification.

Appellant, by her initial application, had certified under oath that her answers were true <u>and</u> acknowledged that failure to make truthful disclosure of required information could result in denial of her application, or revocation of certification, if granted. Appellant's Exhibit 26, p. 2.

Upon discovery of the May 17, 1993, undisclosed order, appellant was advised by letter notice of January 12, 1996, that her application was denied. Appellant's Exhibit 22. Appellant thereafter enjoyed full right of review through the Certification Plan Appeals Committee and the Board of Governors of The Florida Bar, both of which affirmed the denial of appellant's application because of her improper answers and nondisclosure of the order of May 17, 1993. Appellant's Exhibits 36 and 38.

The denial of appellant's application should be affirmed by denial of this appeal. The Appellate Practice Certification Committee and BLSE were fully authorized to pose questions III. F. 4. and 5. The questions were clear and the duty of disclosure was unmistakable. The denial was fully justified and legally authorized. See Rule 6-3.7 (a)(1), Rules Regulating The Florida Bar, and application acknowledgment at Appellant's Exhibit 2, p. 6.

Appellant has failed to show any denial of due process or right of review. The panel review process for adverse peer review denial was not employed because appellant's application was ultimately denied for untruthful answers and improper nondisclosure, not adverse peer review evaluation. Intermediate BLSE review was inadvertently omitted, but appellant did not elect or accept the offered opportunity for stay and cure of the Appellant's Exhibit 34, pp. 11-12. Appellant elected omission. instead to proceed with review before the Certification Plan Appeals Committee, which affirmed the application denial, and then before the full Board of Governors, which also affirmed.

This Court should now deny this appeal and affirm the denial. The denial of <u>this</u> untruthful application, with nondisclosure of a clearly required judicial order, is the only appropriate disposition. The requirement and expectation of truthfulness and candor of certification applicants permit no less.

No entitlement has been denied or removed from appellant. She is free to reapply for appellate certification by a new, and truthful application. She is entitled to continue her practice of appellate law in the interim, with no restriction whatsoever because of her failure to attain certification upon her flawed and untruthful initial application. The denial of her present application, and the thwarting of her prior efforts to attain certification, are not error or injustice in prior proceedings, but the reasonable and appropriate consequence of appellant's decision to answer clear application questions untruthfully and thereby effectively conceal (through two application review and exam cycles) the highly pertinent and critical order of May 17, 1993.

#### ARGUMENT

#### <u>POINT I</u>

THE FLORIDA BAR ACTED PROPERLY, AND WITHOUT ERROR, IN DENYING APPLICANT ASH APPELLATE CERTIFICATION BECAUSE OF HER IMPROPER ANSWERS TO APPLICATION QUESTIONS III. F. 4. AND 5.

Appellant Ash has misquoted application question 111. F. 4. on page 7 of her Initial Brief. Appellant quotes question 4 as follows:

> 4. List and explain all cases in which your competence or conduct was raised as a **basis** for relief requested by the court including but not limited to a new trial, new appeal, dismissal or reversal.

Initial Brief of Appellant, p. 7.

The quotation by appellant fails to indicate any omissions, or the adding of emphasis.

The actual question, which appears in Appellant's Exhibit 2, page 3, is as follows:

4. List and explain all cases in which your competence or conduct was raised as a basis for a relief requested by opposing counsel or by the court including but no (sic) limited to a new trial, new appeal, dismissal or reversal. Enclose a copy of relevant documents in these cases.

The actual question, as asked, included the phrase "by opposing counsel or" which appellant omitted; did not include the emphasis added by appellant; and included a final sentence requiring attachment of relevant documents. Appellant's answer to the question as asked was "N/A."

Appellant's argument before this Court (as before CPAC and the Board of Governors below) appears to be that she did not understand question F. 4. to call for or require disclosure of the May 17, 1993, order of the district court of appeal (Appellant's Exhibit 26).

Appellant's argument, and suggestion that nondisclosure was an inadvertent product of misunderstanding or misinterpretation, are simply not plausible or worthy of serious consideration. As to whether appellant's "conduct or competence was raised as a basis," the order of May 17, 1993, recited on its face that the offending response was served by appellant Ash, and then stated as its basis:

(a) The State placed its reliance on <u>Robins v. State</u>, 587 So. 2d 581 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991), without disclosing that <u>Robins</u> was quashed by <u>Robins v. State</u>, 602 So. 2d 1272 (Fla. 1992).

(b) The State failed to disclose decisions of this district which are in conflict with <u>Robins</u>, even though the First District <u>Robins</u> decision specifically states that conflict exists. 587 So. 2d at 583.

(c) The State failed to discover or disclose that one of the above-mentioned conflicting decisions of this court, <u>State v.</u> <u>Rodriquez</u>, 582 So. 2d 1189 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991), was approved by the Florida Supreme Court in <u>State v. Rodrisuez</u>, 602 So. 2d 1270 (Fla. 1992), even though the First District <u>Robins</u> decision discussed <u>Rodriguez</u> and the fact that the <u>Rodriguez</u> certified question was then pending in the Florida Supreme Court. 587 So. 2d at 583.

(d) The State argued that <u>Hall v. State</u>, 517 So. 2d 678 (Fla. 1988), was superseded by section 775.021(4), Fla. Stat. (1991) (amended effective Oct. 1, 1988, by ch. 88-131, Laws of Fla.). A review of the subsequent history of <u>Hall</u> would have disclosed <u>Cleveland v. State</u>, 587 So. 2d 1145 (Fla. 1991), in which the Florida Supreme Court rejected this precise argument and held that <u>Hall</u> is still good law. (e) The State argued that the controlling version of section 775.021(4) is determined by the date of conviction. The Florida Supreme Court has held that the relevant date is the date of the offense, not the date of the conviction. <u>State v. Smith</u>, 547 So. 2d 613 (Fla. 1989).

Surely and clearly **any** lawyer who had authored, served **and filed a** pleading which was thereafter **described in such a** manner by the court <u>should and would</u> realize that the lawyer's "conduct or competence was **raised**" by the court, as included in question 111. F. 4.

Appellant's alternative argument appears to be that even if her "conduct or competence was raised" by the Court in the order of May 17, 1993, she did not understand it to be as a basis for any "relief" contemplated by the question. By quotational emphasis and argument (see Initial Brief, pp. 8, 16), appellant attempts to restrict her reading of "relief" to new trial, new appeal, dismissal or reversal. This court will note, however, that while question 111. F. 4, mentions such forms of relief, the mention is directly and <u>immediately</u> preceded by the phrase or terms "including but not limited to." Appellant's Exhibit 2, p. 3. Thus, the question clearly asks about <u>any</u> form of relief, not just those mentioned.

It is equally clear that the order of May 17, 1993, on sua sponte action of the court, directed "relief" based upon the described conduct of appellant Ash. It did not merely order appellant to show cause why further sanctions should not be imposed

for her pleading conduct; it directed and ordered, in pertinent part:

Upon consideration of the foregoing it is ordered that:

1. The Response to Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is stricken and a new Response shall be filed within 20 days by such counsel as the Attorney General may designate.

2. Patricia Ash shall show cause in writing within 20 days why sanctions should not be imposed on her for the above-mentioned deficiencies in the Response served March 25, 1993.

3. Except for the response required in paragraph 2, any further filing by Patricia Ash in the present case must also be signed by a supervising attorney.

Surely and clearly <u>any</u> lawyer who was so ordered to show cause to avoid further sanctions, whose prior pleading on behalf of the State of Florida was stricken, and who was required to thereafter be joined in further filings by a supervising attorney, would understand this to be "relief" triggering disclosure in response to question III. F. 4.

Even if, somehow, appellant's argument as to question 111. F. 4. could be accepted as plausible, there remains question 111. F. 5. That question was as follows:

> 5. List and explain all cases in which your conduct was adversely commented upon in writing by a judge or determined to be error whether harmless or not.

Appellant's Exhibit 2, p. 3.

It is truly absurd to suggest that appellant did not realize that her "conduct was adversely commented upon" by the order of May 17, 1993, and that, therefore, disclosure was required. The question precedes the "determined to be error" criterion with the disjunctive word "or." One need not even be a practicing lawyer to understand and interpret this language to mean that disclosure is required if one's "conduct was adversely commented upon in writing" <u>or</u> if one's "conduct was . . . determined to be error whether harmless or not." A functional knowledge of plain English permits no other interpretation.

Appellant, throughout her Initial Brief, has emphasized that in her listing of appellate "credits" she included Johnson v. <u>Singletary</u>, the proceeding in which the order of May 17, 1993, was entered. See Initial Brief of Patricia Ann Ash, pp. 8, 10. Appellant even asserts at page 10 that in response to another question she provided the Appellate Practice Committee with "the petition and the response" in Johnson v. Singletary.

What is most important, however, is what appellant did <u>not</u> provide. Despite seeking "credit" for <u>Johnson v. Singletary</u> and submitting the petition for habeas corpus and State's response, she <u>omitted to provide</u> with those items <u>any</u> copy, notice or disclosure of the order of May 17, 1993. It is inescapable that appellant desired and sought to receive affirmative credit for handling the appeal as "lead counsel," but to avoid disclosure and consideration of her conduct as "adversely commented upon" in the case by the district court. See Appellant's Exhibit 2, p. 3, Question 111. F. 5.

Appellant has argued at page 10 of her Initial Brief that since her answers to questions 111. F. 4. and 5. were "N/A," or

"not applicable" rather than "none," it is somehow established that there was no attempt to deceive or falsely answer on her part. See also Initial Brief, page 17. BLSE respectfully submits that the answer "not applicable" to the two questions <u>as Dosed</u> is equally deceptive or misleading as would have been the answer "none." Either answer represents intentional nondisclosure to the Appellate Practice Certification Committee.

Appellant cites <u>The Florida Bar v. Temmer</u>, 632 So. 2d 1359 (Fla. 1994), at page 17 of her Initial Brief and attempts to analogize her deceptive answer of "not applicable" to a "categorical denial" of bar discipline charges by a lawyer who is required to respond. The cited case is clearly inapplicable in that it involved a disciplinary proceeding and suspension from the practice of law, and involved a disciplinary rule which, while making response mandatory, also <u>expressly</u> authorized the accused to deny the charges against him. This Court held that under these circumstances, the denial of the charges could not be a proper basis for enhanced or more severe discipline.

Moreover, what appellant did in the instant case was <u>not</u> an authorized or "categorical" denial of charges against her; it was a deceptive and misleading answer of "not applicable" to questions III. F. 4. and 5., where an affirmative answer, and disclosure, was called for under <u>any</u> reasonable and plausible interpretation.

Appellant has also cited a number of "bar admission" cases, including two decisions which authorized admission to the Bar despite a lack of full candor in the admission process. <u>Florida</u>

Board of Bar Examiners Re J.A.S., 658 So. 2d 515 (Fla. 1995); Application of VMF far Admission to The Florida Bar, 491 So. 2d 1104 (Fla. 1986).

These cited decisions, representing case-by-case review of individual circumstances in Bar <u>admission</u> proceedings, do not support appellant's demand for <u>certification</u> in the present proceedings. In this respect it is pertinent that certification does not require or turn upon a demonstration of ordinary competence or proficiency in the law, but upon establishment of "special knowledge, skills and proficiency" in the area of practice involved. Rules 6-1.2, 6-13.1, Rules Regulating The Florida Bar. Moreover, while denial of admission as considered in the abovecited cases precludes one from all practice of law in Florida, the absence or denial of certification imposes no restrictions whatsoever on the practice of law in any area. Rule 6-3.4 (b), Rules Regulating The Florida Bar.

If further distinction is required, it is further noted that in the J.A.S. proceeding, supra, this Court described the testimonial discrepancies as "not significant." 658 So. 2d. 516. In the VMF proceeding this Court noted that the applicant relied upon advice of counsel in not disclosing his prior "expunged" record, regarding a matter ten years earlier. This Court also noted at page 1107, in pertinent part, that:

> We also wish to stress the fact that we expect no less than absolute candor from a Bar applicant in his dealings with the Board.

Application of VMF for Admission To The Florida Bar, 491 So. 2d 1104, 1107 (Fla. 1986).

This Court has noted, time and again, in the context of Bar admission proceedings, that candor of an applicant is essential, and that no moral character qualification for Bar membership is more important than truthfulness and candor. This Court has held that a lack of candor on the part of an applicant is intolerable and disqualifying for membership in the Bar. <u>Florida Board of Bar Examiners Re C.A.M.</u>, 639 So. 2d 612, 613 (Fla. 1994); <u>Florida Board of Bar Examiners Re M.R.I.</u>, 623 So. 2d 1178, 1180 (Fla. 1993); <u>Florida Board of Bar Examiners Re J.H.K.</u>, 581 So. 2d 37, 39 (Fla. 1991) (denial based in part on improper or misleading use of answer "N/A," and rejection by Board of implausible explanation).

BLSE respectfully submits that decisions of this Court regarding Bar admissions, while not directly applicable to certification proceedings, serve as sound collateral or parallel authority for the denial of certification based upon lack of candor by an applicant in the application process. This is particularly clear where Rule 6-3.7 (a)(1), Rules Regulating The Florida Bar authorizes revocation of previously issued certification for any false representation or misstatement of material fact to the certification committee, and the application signed by appellant <u>expressly</u> noted that failure to make truthful disclosure may result in denial of the application. Appellant's Exhibit 2, p. 6.

At page 11 of her Initial Brief appellant Ash argues that the certification committee changed its decisions, reciting that the committee approved her first application, initially announced it would deny her second application on peer review grounds, and

finally or ultimately denied her second application because of nondisclosure of the order of May 17, 1993.

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